From: Evelyn Smith

To: Nelson, Kevin (DOA)

Subject: [EXTERNAL] : ID#: CHA-CP-21

Date: Friday, July 2, 2021 7:03:33 PM
Attachments: 2021 AHC COMP PLAN COMMENTS.docx

Dear Mr. Nelson:

I enclose a copy of the memorandum that I submitted to the Charlestown Town Council on
April 14, in my capacity as Chairman of the Affordable Housing Commission of the Town of
Charlestown.

It is my understanding that the first amendment to the Housing Choice chapter of the
Comprehensive Plan, recommended therein, was adopted by the Town Council, on the
Planner's advice, prior to its submission to you for review.

However, the Planner would not endorse, and the Town Council did not adopt the second
amendment therein, and I am asking that you consider requiring the revision of the section
entitled HOUSING: ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: Practical Affordability.

As it stands, this section of Charlestown's Comprehensive Plan invents and stands on a term
that has no professional significance or understanding, and that has been based on an informal
study conducted by a non-professional ten years ago, with no peer review, using
unsubstantiated housing valuations and having no knowledge of the income of the occupants
of the housing being studied.

More appallingly, where the Plan is supposed to set forth strategies to enable the Town to
meet the requirements of the Low and Moderate Income Housing Act, it does so by instructing
the Town to seek amendment of the Act to reduce the state requirements so that it won't have
to comply with the present requirements.

This just can not be permitted to stand.

Thank you for your consideration.

Sincerely,

Evelyn J. Smith

Evelyn Smith

Tel. (401) 364-6066
Cell (401) 932-8398


mailto:evelyn_smith@netzero.net
mailto:kevin.nelson@doa.ri.gov

April 14, 2021



TO:		CHARLESTOWN TOWN COUNCIL

		CHARLESTOWN PLANNING COMMISSION



FROM:		EVELYN J. SMITH,

		Chair, Affordable Housing Commission



RE:		PUBLIC HEARING, APRIL 14, 2021

		2021 COMPREHENSIVE COMMUNITY PLAN



I regret that I am unable to attend tonight’s Public Hearing.



Please find attached the comments that I have prepared for tonight’s hearing, encompassing two recommendations for the amendment of the Housing Choice chapter.



I believe both amendments to be in the best interest of better understanding and promoting the expansion of affordable housing opportunities in Charlestown.



Thank you for your consideration.



Respectfully submitted,







Evelyn J. Smith




EVELYN J. SMITH

2021 CHARLESTOWN COMPREHENSIVE COMMUNITY PLAN

COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

Public Hearing April 14, 2021



Ref. Charlestown Comprehensive Plan – HOUSING CHOICE



RECOMMENDATION 1.  Amend the first paragraph of the section entitled Affordable Housing (Page 10-6) as follows:



(Page 10-6, to be amended)

Affordable housing also known as “low or moderate income housing”   Low or moderate income housing (LMI or LMIH) is commonly known as “affordable housing.”  It is defined in the RI General Laws Section 45-53-3 as follows: “Low or moderate income housing means any housing whether built or operated by any public agency or any nonprofit organization or by any limited equity housing cooperative or any private developer, that is subsidized by a federal, state, or municipal government subsidy under any program to assist the construction or rehabilitation of housing affordable to low or moderate income households, as defined in the applicable federal or state statute, or local ordinance and that will remain affordable through a land lease and/or deed restriction for ninety-nine (99) years or such other period that is either agreed to by the applicant and town or prescribed by the federal, state, or municipal government subsidy program but that is not less than thirty (30) years from initial occupancy.”  Wherever in this plan the term “affordable housing” appears, it should be understood to mean low or moderate income housing as defined by state law.





ARGUMENT IN SUPPORT OF AMENDMENT:



The Comprehensive Plan is both a guide for future Town actions and an educational tool for its citizens.  To implement the Town’s Affordable Housing Plan, it is essential that this chapter clearly define and distinguish between housing that “is affordable” and “affordable housing” as both have been defined by federal agencies and the laws of the State of Rhode Island.



Housing affordability is defined by state law, by mortgage financing programs, and by rental subsidy assistance programs, and even in state law it is defined differently for home ownership or rentals, as evidenced by this excerpt from the Rhode Island Five Year Strategic Housing Plan: 2006-2010:



“Before getting into a detailed analysis of Rhode Island’s housing needs it is important that some basic terms be understood and applied uniformly. The following definitions are based on or drawn from either applicable Rhode Island law, Census Bureau definitions, or Land Use: 2025:



“Affordable Housing: (excerpts RIGL 42-128-8.1(d)(1)) Residential housing that has a sales price or rental amount that is within the means of a household that is of moderate income or less. 



“For dwelling units for sale, housing that is affordable means housing in which principal, interest, taxes, and insurance constitute no more than 30% of gross annual household income for a household with less than 120% of area median income, adjusted for family size. 



“For rental units, housing for which the rent, heat, and utilities (other than telephone) constitute no more than 30% of gross annual income for a household with 80% of area median income adjusted for family size. 



“Note: RI Housing is in the process of constructing a spreadsheet-based calculator that will determine what the allowable purchase price will be according to household income and unit size and location. HUD fair market rents are available annually for each HUD region.”



As can be seen in the above definitions, strategies for the expansion of home ownership opportunities will be targeted to a different set of households and meet different affordability thresholds than strategies for the expansion of rental opportunities.



For this reason, it would have been preferable to utilize the term “Low and Moderate Income Housing” throughout the Housing Choice chapter, but the amendment proposed above will suffice to make the intent of the chapter clear as it relates to low and moderate income housing.




Ref. Charlestown Comprehensive Plan – HOUSING CHOICE



RECOMMENDATION 2.  Amend the last paragraph of the section entitled Affordable Housing (Page 10-9) as shown below; and delete in its entirety the fifth paragraph of the section entitled HOUSING: ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: Practical Affordability (Page 10-11) as shown below.



(Page 10-9, to be amended)

“It is also worth noting that the town’s housing resource is in many ways characterized by what the Planning Commission defines as “practical affordability”, which are that is defined as existing housing units available that are affordable in terms of price or rent, but do not meet the strict definitions and threshold requirements of the RI Low and Moderate Income Housing Act. An informal review by the Charlestown Planning Commission in 2011 compared “assessed valuations” in the community with the housing price upper threshold for households earning 80% of the area median income (AMI). The review found that some 1,219 dwellings in the community (37.5% of the year-round units) were assessed below the 80% AMI limit of $240,775. While the state definition for affordability and official inventory would not include these units, it is important to recognize practical affordability as playing a role in meeting housing needs in Charlestown.”



(Page 10-11, to be deleted in its entirety)

“• Practical affordability: Regulatory modification at the state level concerning the definition of affordability and efforts to expand programming and funding to support projects that fit with the community identity and context should be considered. Housing that is “practically affordable” without subsidy or restriction should be recognized in the overall context of the community housing resource base.”



ARGUMENT IN SUPPORT OF AMENDMENT:



“Practical affordability” is a term that has been devised by members of the Planning Commission, and has no meaning, official or otherwise, in state law, Town ordinances or any other recognized housing authority.



The study that is referenced was completed ten years ago, was not peer reviewed, and assumed that the Town’s assessed valuation was a fair market valuation and that the occupants of those dwelling units met the income restrictions of the Low and Moderate Income Housing act.



This type of study may be an interesting way of measuring the potential availability of housing that may become “affordable” at that moment in time, but it does not in any way measure the likelihood that the units in question will remain affordable for any foreseeable period of time.  In fact, even the Tax Assessor’s efforts to undertake revaluations regularly fail to keep up with short-term market fluctuations and employment opportunities, as the recent COVID crisis has illustrated.  From this minimally informative review, the Planning Commission has apparently deduced that the need for low and moderate income housing is less than the state’s required ten percent.



The whole purpose of the state’s Low and Moderate Income Housing Act is to ensure that at least ten percent of the housing stock remains affordable, given that the cost of housing increases more rapidly than wages.



That having been said, the authors of this Comprehensive Plan are free to draw what conclusions they may from the studies that they have conducted, and to fairly report those conclusions in the general discussion of Affordable Housing.



However the subsequent section, entitled Housing: Issues and Opportunities, purportedly describes the manner in which the Town must “manage residential growth” and “respond to the need for more affordable year-round units.”  In this context, the concept of “Practical affordability” translates into the Town seeking modification of the State’s low and moderate income requirement.



Since the Town has neither the authority to modify State law nor the documentation necessary to refute it, this proposed “Housing Issue” should be deleted from the Town’s Comprehensive Community Plan.


